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“In cooperation with our citizens, we improve the quality of life for individuals 

 families and communities by fostering a healthy economy and environment.” 

 

“Looking forward with purpose” 

 
COUNTY BOARD - PROPOSED AGENDA 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 2, 2018, 9:00 A.M.  
1.0 Call to Order  

 
2.0 Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3.0 Approval of Agenda (Action) 

 
4.0 Recognition 

4.1 Visitors & Guests Welcome 
   

5.0 Consent Agenda (Action) 
Pg 4   5.1 September 18, 2018 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Pg 14  5.2 Delta Dental Benefit Plan Summary Change 
Pg 19  5.3 Meetings & Conferences - Travel Expenses 
Pg 27  5.4 Auditor’s and Commissioner’s Warrants 
  

6.0 Department Presentations 
6.1 Drainage System – Brad Harberts (9:03 a.m.)            

A. Motion to recess regular County Board meeting/Convene as Ditch Authority (Action)  
Pg 103    B. Petition to improve JD#17 Outlet (Action) 
Pg 103    C. 2019 Ditch Maintenance Assessments (Action) 

D. Motion to adjourn as Ditch Authority/Reconvene County Board meeting (Action) 
  6.2 Public Works  

                     A.    Highway – Stephen Schnieder (a.m.) 
Pg 103      1.   CSAH 10 Parking Restriction (Action) 
Pg 103      2.   ADA Transition Plan Public Meeting (Action) 
Pg 103      3.   Purchas of Used Pup Trailers (Action) 
    B.  Environmental Services – Kathy Henderschiedt (a.m.) 
Pg 103      1.  Conditional Use Permit #24-2018 
       Nobles Cooperative Electric, Worthington MN 
Pg 103      2.  Continuation of Conditional Use Permit #31-2017 
       Mike Fogelman, DBA Mike’s Mini Excavating, Fulda MN 
 
 

   BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 Phone: 507-295-5201 
Fax: 507-372-8363 

commissioner@co.nobles.mn.us 
 

315 Tenth Street 
P.O. Box 757 
Worthington, MN 56187-0757 
 



 

  

   6.3 Veterans Service – Bill “Brock” Brockberg (a.m.) 
                     A.    County Veterans Service Office Operational Enhancement Grant –  
      Resolution _______ (Action) 

6.4 Sheriff – Kent Wilkening (a.m.) 
Pg 105         A.  Reclassification of 2 PT/Intermittent Sheriff’s Deputies (Action)   

6.5 Human Resources – Sue Luing (a.m.) 
Pg 105         A.  2019 County Cafeteria Contribution (Action)   
 
Pg 156    7.0    Administration Presentation – Tom Johnson (a.m.) 
Pg 158 7.1      Application and Certificate for Payment No. 18-000900002 – Roadside Developers (Action) 
Pg 163 7.2      Construction Change Order 2 – Brennan Companies (Action) 
Pg 169 7.3      Application for Payment No. ___ – Brennan Companies (Action) 
Pg 178 7.4      NCHS Armory Building Proposal Funding Request (Action) 
Pg 178 7.5      Tax Forfeited Property - Rushmore (Action) 
Pg 178 7.6      LP RW appts – Resolution )_______ (Action) 
Pg 178 7.7      2018 Boards, Committees & Commissions – Citizen Appointments (Action) 

 

8.0 Inter-Agency Reports / Announcements (Information) 
Pg 200          8.1 Committee and Board Reports 
Pg 205         8.2 Correspondence 
Pg 213            8.3 Calendar 
 

   9.0 Other / Future Business  
  Coffee With Your Commissioners 

  Tuesday, October 9, 2018 8:00 a.m. – 10:00 a.m. 
  Center for Active Living, 211 11th Street, Worthington MN 56187  
  

10.0     Adjournment (Action) 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“In cooperation with our citizens, we improve the quality of life for individuals, 

 families and communities by fostering a healthy economy and environment.” 
 

“Looking forward with purpose.” 
 

 

 COMMISSIONER BRIEFING 

 

September 18, 2018 Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

 
Recommendation: 
Approve the September 18, 2018 Regular Meeting Minutes by approving the Consent Agenda. 

 

Attachments: 
September 18, 2018 Draft Regular Meeting Minutes 
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OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS OF BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF NOBLES COUNTY, 

MINNESOTA 

 

 The Board of Commissioners of Nobles County met in regular session on Tuesday, September 18, 
2018, in the Commissioners Room, at the Nobles County Government Center, Worthington, 

Minnesota. The following Commissioners were in attendance: Justin Ahlers, Gene Metz, Matt 
Widboom, Robert S. Demuth and Donald Linssen. 

 
 The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Demuth at 9:00 AM followed by the Pledge of 

Allegiance. 
 

 
1.0 Call to Order 

 
2.0 Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3.0 Approval of Agenda 

 
VOTING 

It was duly passed to approve the agenda as presented. 
Motion by: Metz, Gene 
Seconded by: Linssen, Donald  
4.0 Recognition 

 
4.1 

 
Visitors & Guests Welcome 

 
4.2 Recognition for Years of Service 

 

 Michael Harberts, Sign Worker, was recognized for 10 years of service with Nobles 
County. 

5.0 Consent Agenda 

 
5.1 

 
September 4, 2018 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Attachments: 

September 4, 2018 Draft Regular Meeting Minutes 
5.2 

 

Child and Teen Checkup Program Grant Amendment for 2019 

Attachments: 

Amendment No. 1 to Grant Agreement 
CTC 2019 Budget 

5.3 

 

Minnesota Department of Health – Grant Project Agreement 

Attachments: 

MDH Grant Project Agreement 
5.4 

 
Meetings & Conferences - Travel Expenses 

Attachments: 

Travel Expenses paid September 14, 2018 

5.5 

 
Auditor's and Commissioner's Warrants 

Attachments: 

Accounts Payable Summary 
Auditor’s Warrants 
Commissioner’s Warrants – General Revenue 
Commissioner’s Warrants – Public Works 
Commissioner’s Warrants – Family Service Fund 
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VOTING 

It was duly passed to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 
Moved by: Ahlers, Justin 
Seconded by: Widboom, Matt 
6.0 Public Hearing 

 

6.1 Proposed Property Tax Abatement – Nobles Home Initiative 

(Nate Grimmius Parcel 31-2084-940) 

A.   Motion to open Public Hearing (Action) 

B.   Proposed Abatement – Discussion 

C.   Public Comment 

D.   Motion to Close Public Hearing (Action) 

E.   Decision – Resolution 201843 (Action) 

 A. On a motion by Justin Ahlers and seconded by Matt Widboom, it was duly passed 
to recess the regular Board meeting and open the Proposed Property Tax 
Abatement Public Hearing.  

B. Abraham Algadi, Worthington Regional Economic Development Corporation, was 
present to discuss the proposed property tax abatement and answer questions of 
the Board.   Mr. Algadi stated that parcel 31-2084-941 may be split between the 
owner of 31-2084-942 and Grimmius. 

C. No public comments were received.   
D. On a motion by Gene Metz and seconded by Donald Linssen, it was duly passed to 

close the Proposed Property Tax Abatement Public Hearing and resume the 
regular Board meeting.   

E. On a motion by Justin Ahlers and seconded by Matt Widboom, it was duly passed 
to adopt Resolution 201843 approving tax abatement for parcel 31-2084-940 
pursuant to Minnesota Statute 469.1813.         

7.0 Department Presentations 

 

7.1 

 
Community Services – Stacie Golombiecki 

 
A. 

 
Community Wellness Grant – Wrap Up Presentation 

 
 Christine Bullerman, Casey Borgen and Darlene Dewitt presented the Board with the 

priorities and outcomes of the Community Wellness Partners’ (Cottonwood, Jackson, 
Nobles) $1.2 million Community Wellness Grant during 2014 to 2018.  

7.2 

 
Public Works – Stephen Schnieder 

 
A. Nobles 2 Wind Farm Development Agreement 

 

 Stephen Schnieder, Public Works Director/County Engineer, Scott Seier, Tenaska's 
Strategic Development and Acquisitions Group, and Brad Harberts, Drainage Sytem 
Coordinator, presented the Board with information and a recommendation in the area 
of the Nobles 2 Wind Farm Development Agreement.  Mr. Schnieder advised a 
meeting was held on September 17th by the Joint Ditch Authority of the counties of 
Nobles and Murray for Judicial Ditch #12 and the agreement was reviewed and 
approved.  Suggestions for language changes to Section 5, which was reserved to 
Cooperation Regarding Future Public Drainage System Improvements and 
Maintenance, and to section 9.10, Obligations Surviving Termination, were discussed.   
Attachments:  
Development Agreement 
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VOTING 

It was duly passed to approve the passage of the Development Agreement by and between 
Nobles 2 Power Partners, LLC, Nobles County, Minnesota; and Joint Powers Board of Nobles and 
Murray Counties for Judicial Ditch 12 with the modifications as discussed to sections 5 and 9.10.  
Moved by: Ahlers, Justin 
Seconded by: Metz, Gene 

8.0  Administration Presentation – Tom Johnson 

 

8.1 

 
Proposal for Additional Construction Observation Services - INSPEC 

 

 
 
 

Tom Johnson, County Administrator, presented the Board with information and a 
recommendation to approve payment for additional construction observation services 
for the 2017 Reroofing and Exterior Wall Rehabilitation Project at the Prairie Justice 
Center.  The site visit will be charged back to the Contractor through the last Change 
Order for the project.  
Attachments: 

INSPEC Proposal 
VOTING 

It was duly passed to approve the Proposal for Additional Construction Observation Services with 
Inspec for the 2017 Reroofing and Exterior Wall Rehabilitation Project for the additional fee not to 
exceed$1,950.00. 
Moved by: Metz, Gene 
Seconded by: Demuth, Robert S. 
8.2 Application and Certificate for Payment No. 4 – Ideal Landscape and Design Inc. 

 

 

Tom Johnson, County Administrator, presented the Board with information and a 
recommendation to accept the request of Ideal Landscape to release the final 
retainage to close the Nobles County Government Center Foundation Repairs Project.  
Discussion was held on the decision Ideal Landscape had made to reuse the original 
backfill in place of the pea rock in areas and that no cost relief was given to the 
County.  Ideal Landscape had been present at the April 17, 2018 Board of 
Commissioners meeting to answer questions. 
Attachments: 

Application and Certificate for Payment No. 4 – Ideal Landscape and Design, Inc. 
VOTING 

It was duly passed to approve the request of Ideal Landscape to release the final retainage of 
$10,000 to close the Nobles County Government Center Foundation Repairs Project. 
Moved by: Linssen, Donald 
Seconded by: Demuth, Robert S. 
In Favor: Linssen, Donald; Demuth Robert S.; Metz, Gene; Widboom, Matt 
Opposed: Ahlers, Justin 
8.3 Application for Payment No. 3 – Gag Sheet Metal, Inc. 

 
 Tom Johnson, County Administrator, presented the Board with information on a final 

payment for work completed on the Public Works partial reroofing project. 
Attachments: 

Application for Payment No. 3 - Gag 
VOTING 

It was duly passed to approve Gag Sheet Metal Application for Payment No. 3, as presented,  in 
the amount of $5,110.25 for work completed on the Public Works partial reroofing project. 
Moved by: Ahlers, Justin 
Seconded by: Widboom, Matt 
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8.4 Application and Certification for Payment No. 2 and Final – Zahl Equipment 

 
 Tom Johnson, County Administrator, presented the Board with information on a final 

payment for work completed on the Nobles County Government Center Underground 
Fuel Tank Replacement Project. 
Commisioner Linssen questioned if the results of the soil testing were available.  Mr. 
Johnson advised he is waiting for the 2 firms contacted to send their proposals for the 
investigation.   
 Attachments: 

Application and Certification for Payment No. 2 
VOTING 

It was duly passed to approve Application for Payment No. 2 as Final Payment in the amount of 
$12,729.15 to Zahl Equipment Service, Inc. for work completed on the Nobles County 
Government Center Underground Fuel Tank Replacement project.   
Moved by: Metz, Gene 
Seconded by: Ahlers, Justin 
8.5 Request for Payment – Graham’s Concrete 

 
 Tom Johnson, County Administrator, presented the Board with information on a final 

payment for work completed on the Adrian Library for the parking pad. 
Attachments: 

Graham’s Concrete Invoice 
VOTING 

It was duly passed to approve final payment to Graham’s Concrete in the amount of $14,196.00 
for completion of the concrete work on the Adrian Library Renovation project.  
Moved by: Linssen, Donald 
Seconded by: Metz, Gene 
8.6 2018 Boards, Committees & Commissions – Citizen Appointments 

 
 Attachments: 

Application – Johnson 
2018 NC Boards & Committees Listing 

VOTING 

It was duly passed to appoint Scott Johnson of the Avera McKennan Behavioral Health 
Center/Southwestern Mental Health Center, to a 2 year term expiring December 31, 2019 on the 
Community Services Advisory Committee. 
Moved by: Ahlers, Justin 
Seconded by: Demuth, Robert S. 
8.7 2019 Budget 

 

A. Preliminary Budget Highlights 

 

 Tom Johnson, County Administrator, presented the Board with a summary of the 2019 
proposed budget, including an 8.46% increase in the tax levy over 2018 for the not-to-
exceed amount of $14,763,231 for the Board’s consideration.  Jerry Vyskocil, Finance 
Director, advised of adjustments to personnel requests and that the Budget Committee 
will be meeting to find ways to decrease the proposed levy amount.  Mr. Johnson 
advised he is confident that the Budget Committee will be successful in decreasing the 
proposed levy amount. 
Attachments: 

2019 Budget Summary by Fund 
General Revenue Fund Budget Summary 
Public Works Budget Summary 
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Community Services Budget Summary 
2019 Budget Elected Salary Requests 
2019 Temporary Part Time Proposed Positions 
2019 Budget Proposed Positions 

B. 2019 Not To Exeed Levy – Resolution 201842 

 

 Attachments: 

2019 Not To Exceed Levy – Resolution 201842 
VOTING 

It was duly passed to adopt Resolution 201842, the not-to-exceed, proposed tax levy in the 
amount of $14,763,231 for collection in 2019 as presented.   
Moved by: Widboom, Matt 
Seconded by: Linssen, Donald 
9.0 Inter-Agency Reports / Announcements 

 
9.1 

 
Committee and Board Reports 

 

 
 
 

District I  -   Commissioner Ahlers reported on the Rock-Nobles Community 
Corrections Executive Board and Nobles County Historical Society meetings. 
 
District II - Commissioner Metz reported on Southwestern Minnesota Opportunity 
Council (S.M.O.C.), Association of Minnesota Counties (AMC) Fall Policy Conference 
and the upcoming AMC District 8 meeting.  
 
District III -  Commissioner Widboom reported on the Southwestern Minnesota 
Opportunity Council (S.M.O.C.) and Buffalo Ridge Regional Rail Authority (B.R.R.R.A.) 
meetings. 
 
District IV - Commissioner Demuth reported on the 2017 Audit Exit Interview meeting. 
 
District V -  Commissioner Linssen reported on the Chief Elected Officials Board 
(C.E.O.B.) and Park Board meetings. 
 
Management Team - Attorney Kathleen Kusz was not present. 
 
County Administration – Administrator Tom Johnson reported on the upcoming 
Association of Minnesota Counties Annual Meeting, the recommendation of the State 
of MN DVS to close License Centers at 3:30 p.m. and updates on the Government 
Center Site Improvements project. 
Attachments: 

Heron Lake Watershed District July 24, 2018 Regular Mtg Minutes 
Nobles SWCD August 15, 2018 Regular Mtg Minutes 

9.2 

 
Correspondence 

Attachments: 

Recruitment Update 
Notice of Public Hearing for Frontier Communications Customers 
Greater Blue Earth River Basin Alliance 

9.3 

 
Calendar 

Attachments: 

Commissioners Calendar – September 2018 
Commissioners Calendar – October 2018 
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10.0 Other / Future Business 

            Board Work Session 

  Wednesday, September 26, 2018 8:30 a.m. 
  Executive Conference Room, Government Ctr, 318 9th Street, Worthington MN 
11.0 Adjournment 

 
VOTING 

It was duly passed to adjourn the meeting at 10:44 a.m. 
Moved by: Ahlers, Justin 
Seconded by: Metz, Gene 

 
 
 

(Chairperson)    (County Administrator)  
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“In cooperation with our citizens, we improve the quality of life for individuals, 

 families and communities by fostering a healthy economy and environment.” 

 

“Looking Forward with Purpose” 

 

 COMMISSIONER BRIEFING 

 

Delta Dental Benefit Plan Summary Change 
Human Resources 

 
Issue:   

The current delta dental benefit plan summary has a restrictive time frame in which a preventive service 
will be covered. There is now an option for a 60 month contract.  
 

Discussion:   

For the 2019 renewal, Delta Dental is making some recommendations to our SPD to align them with 
our calendar year benefit. There will be no claim cost impact to the group at all. Just building a flexible 
and stronger Summary of Plan Document. DDMN is now allowed to change the frequencies to the 
following services under Preventive benefits. 

1. Bitewings- currently showing the benefit of 1 series per 12 months, we can change to 1 series 
per calendar year to align with the oral exams and cleanings. 

2. Fluoride Treatment- currently showing the benefit of 1 x per 12 months, we can change it to 1 x 
per calendar year to align with the oral exams and cleanings. 

 
In addition Delta Dental is offering a 60 month contract. Their new renewal and Mid Contract Strategy 
has been reevaluated and they feel that they can offer 60 month contracts to healthier groups. That 
way we have 5 years of claims and may have a few bad years and it wouldn’t hurt our group as much, 
due to they only look back at the last 12 months of claims for the renewal. Nobles County can cancel 
the contract with a 30 day notice. 
 

Recommendation: 

Approve and authorize Sue Luing, HR Director/Deputy County Administrator to approve the documents 
for the Delta Dental recommended changes to the SPD and the 60 month contract by approving the 
consent agenda. 

    

   

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“In cooperation with our citizens, we improve the quality of life for individuals, 

 families and communities by fostering a healthy economy and environment.” 
 

“Looking forward with purpose.” 
 

 

 COMMISSIONER BRIEFING 

 

Meetings & Conferences – Travel Expenses 

 
Consent Agenda 

 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the travel expenses paid September 28, 2018 by approving the Consent Agenda. 

 

 
Attachments: 
Travel Expenses paid September 28, 2018 

 

    
   

 
 
 



28-Sep-18

Employee Taxable Non-Tax

Number Date Name Department Meeting/Conference Expenses Expenses Per  Account Code

Diem 

421 9/19/2018 Roos, Cathy Admin

SWWC Coop Meeting for 2019 

Highlights $67.85 01-030-035-6201

474 9/9-9/12/18 Brockberg, Bill CVSO Fall Training Conf - Nisswa, MN $764.70 01-122-6201

733 8/26-8/30/18 Verbrugge, Riley Sheriff's Office Training - Eagan, MN $326.01 01-200-201-6201

384 9/11-9/14/18 Berkevich, Monette Jail JA Conf - Brainerd, MN $314.20 01-250-251-6201

21 9/5-9/20/18 Henderschiedt, Kathy Environmental Services

CFO Conf-Marshall, Floodplain 

Training-St. James, 1W1P Mtg- $36.24 $120.99 03-330-175-6201

396 8/31-9/19/18 Abrahamson, Angela Community ServicesClient Contacts/Meeting-Slayton $10.63 $50.58 Community Services

36 8/29-9/14/18 Diekmann, Stephani Community ServicesCS Supervisor Mtg-Mankato $101.46 05-420-640-6201

36 8/29-9/14/18 Diekmann, Stephani Community Services

AMSSA Reg'l-Redwood Falls, SSIS 

Time Reporting Mtg-Marshall $67.06 05-405-700-4444-6201

36 8/29-9/14/18 Diekmann, Stephani Community Services

AMSSA Reg'l-Redwood Falls, SSIS 

Time Reporting Mtg-Marshall $54.87 05-420-600-6201

695 8/30/2018 Ekadu, Peter Community ServicesSW/SC Data Meeting-New Ulm $8.98 Community Services

725 5/18-8/23/18 Gallagher, Joshua Community Services

Home Visits/Training/Transport, Pick 

up Client's Belongings-Benson, MN $185.92 $165.69 Community Services

406 8/1-8/31/18 Habben, Kristin Community ServicesClient Contacts, Drug Court, Meeting $22.35 Community Services

43 9/14/2018 Houselog, Colleen Community ServicesCS Hrgs $5.45 Community Services

185 9/14/2018 Pedersen, Geralda Community ServicesCourts $2.73 Community Services

549 8/1-8/29/18 Pomrenke, Teresa Community ServicesHV, Region 8 Training $10.96 $61.04 Community Services

549 8/1-8/29/18 Pomrenke, Teresa Community ServicesDOT $1.09 05-450-456-6201

716 8/1-8/20/18 Rohwer-Foster, Joy Community ServicesMNSUP Meeting $11.92 Community Services

716 8/1-8/20/18 Rohwer-Foster, Joy Community ServicesMNSUP Meeting Fuel $23.74 01-075-801-6201

741 9/19/2018 Shaffer, Kristine Community ServicesCLT Meeting $28.48 Community Services

638 7/26-9/17/18 Wolthuizen, Clint Library

Transport Muralist, Parking Pad 

Contractor Mtgs, PCLS AC Mtg, ILS 

Mtg, Concrete Work, Landscaping for 

Adrian $10.20 $248.96 21-511-6201

638 7/26-9/17/18 Wolthuizen, Clint Library Landscaping for Adrian $114.91 21-512-6221

638 7/26-9/17/18 Wolthuizen, Clint Library Landscaping for Adrian $167.96 21-519-6800

TOTAL $262.93 $2,722.04

GRAND TOTAL    $2,984.97

Travel Expenses Paid - Nobles County
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Travel Expenses Paid - Nobles County Board

Employee Taxable Non-Tax Per 

Number Date Name Dept Meeting/Conference Expenses Expenses Diem  Account Code

692 4/20-6/12/18 Ahlers, Justin Board

RNCC, HLWD, RNCC Bond, RNCC Special 

Meeting, Historical Society, Round Lake City 

Council $300.00 01-002-6105

692 4/20-6/12/18 Ahlers, Justin Board

RNCC, Work Sessions, Board Mtg, HLWD, 

RNCC Bond, RNCC Special Mtg, Bond Mtg, 

Historical Society, Round Lake City Council, 

Equalization Mtg $219.60 01-002-6201

692 6/19-8/28/18 Ahlers, Justin Board Drainage Conf, RNCC, HLWD $250.00 01-002-6105

692 6/19-8/28/18 Ahlers, Justin Board

Board Mtgs, Work Sessions, Drainage Conf, 

RNCC, HLWD $166.97 $87.62 01-002-6201

692 6/19-8/28/18 Ahlers, Justin Board EMPAC Meeting $35.00 01-282-6105

692 6/19-8/28/18 Ahlers, Justin Board EMPAC Meeting $17.00 01-282-6201

692 8/29-9/21/18 Ahlers, Justin Board

RNCC, HLWD, NCHS, Drainage Authority 

JD12 $250.00 01-002-6105

692 8/29-9/21/18 Ahlers, Justin Board

Work Session, Board Mtgs, RNCC, HLWD, 

NCHS, Drainage Authority JD12 $175.79 01-002-6201

Total $386.57 $280.41 $835.00

GRAND TOTAL $1,501.98

28-Sep-18























































































































































































 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“In cooperation with our citizens, we improve the quality of life for individuals, 

 families and communities by fostering a healthy economy and environment.” 
  

COMMISSIONER BRIEFING 

MIKE FOGELMAN, DBA MIKE’S MINI EXCAVATING - FULDA, MN - CUP #31-2017 

Environmental Services 

Kathy Henderschiedt 

5 minutes 

Issue:   
The continuation of Mike Fogelman, DBA Mike’s Mini Excavating, Fulda, MN for a home extended business to 
consist of stockpiling rock, dirt, clay, asphalt and concrete, asphalt and concrete crushing on site, operation of 
an ag drainage business, resale of ag drainage material, operation of a subsurface sewage treatment system 
installation business, and also applying household septage to MPCA permitted land.  Public hearing is required 
under Section 603.4 Home Extended Businesses.  This parcel of land is located on a tract 1,052’ x 1,400’ in 
the SE ¼ of SW ¼, Section 15, Township 104, Range 40, Seward Township.  
 
Discussion:   
See attached documents 
 
Options:    
Deny, approve as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission, approve and make modifications, 
return to Planning Commission for further review.  
 
Recommendation: 
Approval of the request of Mike Fogelman, DBA Mike’s Mini Excavating, Fulda, MN for a home extended 
business to consist of stockpiling rock, dirt, clay, asphalt and concrete, asphalt and concrete crushing on site, 
operation of an ag drainage business, resale of ag drainage material, operation of a subsurface sewage 
treatment system installation business, and also applying household septage to MPCA permitted land with the 
following conditions: 
 

1.) Township road agreement clarifying who will repair the damage, if any, caused by increased equipment 

hauling and dust control specifications. 

2.) Applicant must provide Environmental Services with MPCA permits for disposal of household septage 

on site. 

3.) Applicant must provide Environmental Services with a copy of the FSA map indicating this is a farmable 

wetland.  

This parcel of land is located on a tract 1,052’ x 1,400’ in the SE ¼ of SW ¼, Section 15, Township 104, Range 
40, Seward Township. 
 
Attachment: 

Nobles County Planning & Zoning Minutes September 26, 2018 
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NOBLES COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING 

MINUTES 

SEPTEMBER 26, 2018 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Larry Boots, Travis Burnham, Brent Feikema, Ron Ozmun, John Penning, 
Richard Schlichte, Duane Schmitz, Dave Thier, and Marvin Zylstra 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Dave Vander Kooi 
MEMBERS EXCUSED:  Robert Demuth Jr. 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Kathy Henderschiedt, Licia Keninger, applicant(s) and interested parties. 
 
 
FEEDLOT ORDINANCE WORK SESSION 

 
The Board of Adjustment and The Planning Commission held a joint work session to discuss potential 
changes to the Nobles County Feedlot Ordinance.   A copy of the updated proposal is on file at the 
Environmental Services Office. 

   
The minutes to the August 22, 2018 meeting were approved as written on a motion made by Mr. 
Schmitz and seconded by Mr. Zylstra.  All were in favor. 
 
There were no additions to the agenda. 
 

NOBLES COOPERATIVE ELECTRIC, WORTHINGTON, MN – CUP #24-2018 

 
Mrs. Henderschiedt read the request of Nobles Cooperative Electric, Worthington, MN applicant, and 
Daniel Watry, Adrian, MN landowner, a conditional use permit for an electrical substation. Public 
hearing is required under Section 603.4 Conditional Uses for Dams, Power Plants, Switching Yards, 
Transmission Lines of over 35KV, Flowage Areas, and Pipelines of the Nobles County Land Use 
Ordinance. This parcel of land is located on a tract 417.42’ x 417.42’ in the NW Corner of the NW ¼, 
Section 7, Township 103, Range 42, (Larkin Township). 
 
Mr. Adam Tromblay, General Manager, and Mr. Brian Postma, Line Superintendent, both from 
Nobles Cooperative Electric, explained their request.   
 
Mr. Postma:  We have requested to purchase some land from the Watry boys in the Northwest ¼ of 
Section 7 in Larkin Township.  The location is right across from the cemetery and about a half mile 
east of Lismore.  The reason we are doing this is we are looking to eliminate 3 old sub stations.  One 
of these sub stations is sinking away, and the other two are very outdated.  The power quality up 
there needs to be improved.  We chose this parcel of land due to the transmission line that runs along 
Highway 91.  We need to stay very close to that.  We also want to stay near the Lismore area due to 
the power quality and the load up there.  We reached out to a few other landowners and were denied, 
and the Watry’s are willing to sell us a piece of land, and have been willing to work with us.  If our 
request is approved, we will pursue the purchase.   
 
Mr. Penning:  Kathy, do you have a staff report? 
 
Mrs. Henderschiedt:  The proposal is basically a substation and we have no concern with the 
proposed location.   
 
Mr. Feikema:  I see Bill is here from Larkin Township.  Does the Larkin Township Board have any 
concerns with this project? 
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Mr. Bill Slate, Larkin Township:   I don’t know how much heavy equipment and cement is coming in 
there to build this site, but we want the road returned in the same shape they found it.  There are two 
access driveways at this site on the township road.  Another concern is the snow removal.  With the 
cemetery to the north of this site, there is only one direction to blow snow all winter and that is to the 
south.  We will be blowing the snow on those driveways.  We will try to turn the spout and shoot the 
snow straight ahead if we can, but there will be times that the snow will be blown on those driveways.  
We have 5 snow blowers in our township.  We are all farmers with livestock, and we cannot 
guarantee a time when that road is going to be open in the morning.  In some cases it may not be 
open until the afternoon.  It is not an option to blow the snow to the north.  With the pine trees in the 
cemetery, if you knock those needles off the trees, it does not work.  We cannot guarantee a time 
when the road will be open, and just like the windmill project; we want the road returned in the same 
shape as when they started.   
 
Mr. Penning:  What is the setback from the road Kathy? 
 
Mrs.: Henderschiedt:  The setback is 80’ from the centerline of a township road. 
 
Mr. Slate:  We would like the driveways to be on Highway 91 if they could. 
 
Mr. Penning:  With the State that would probably be a problem, right? 
 
Mr. Tromblay and Mr. Postma, Yes. 
 
Mr. Penning:  Will the townships request be an issue? 
 
Mr. Postma:  No, there will be some heavy equipment to construct this project, but the road will be put 
back the way it is supposed to be.  I spoke with the Larkin Chairman the other day, and the guy that 
blows the snow.  We can work it out with the snow removal I think.   
 
Mr. Tromblay:  We are not in and out of the site very often.  I think they thought we access this site a 
lot, but we don’t have a reason to go into the sub stations.  Once a month we go in there to check 
everything and unless we have an animal or something, we don’t really have a reason to go in and 
out of those. 
 
Mr. Thier:  There will be a fence around the site I assume? 
 
Mr. Postma:  Yes, the fence will be setback 80’ from the township road and 125’ from State Hwy 91. 
 
Mr. Penning:  Are there any concerns from the public? 
 
Mr. Elmore “Mike” Eagen:  What direction are the transmission lines going to go? 
 
Mr. Postma:  The transmission lines run north and south on the west right of way.   
 
Mr. Eagen:  On the west side of 91? 
 
Mr. Postma:   Yes, the transmission lines will cross 91 and the structure will sit inside the sub. 
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Mr. Tromblay:  We are not going to build any overhead lines.  The transmission is already there.  We 
are just going to tap into the transmission and bring lines across the highway to bring power into the 
substation.  
 
Mr. Postma:  On the distribution side, it all will come out underground going into the ditch and routing 
out from that point each way. 
 
Mrs. Linda Loonan, Lismore, MN – I live to the west of where they want to construct this project.  
Don’t we have any respect for the people in the cemeteries anymore?  The Watry’s have got land all 
the way down to the city dump.  Go down the road a half mile and build it.  Don’t build it by the 
cemetery.  Have some respect for the dead.  They asked us to build one on our property, and we said 
no way by the cemetery and they said we totally respect that.  So now all of the sudden Watry’s will 
sell them some land and it is popping up next to the cemetery again.  You’ve got a whole half mile of 
land down there by that city dump.  Build something down there instead, and not next to the 
cemetery. 
 
Mr. Penning: I am not sure if it will be that invasive to the cemetery if it is going to be site that has no 
activity the way it sounds.  Your response gentleman? 
 
Mr. Postma:  During the construction season of the sub there will be activity, but otherwise we usually 
visit the site once a month and all you will here is a hum / buzz. 
 
Mr. Tromblay:  We have to be a certain distance from that 115 Line that goes there.  This is the 4th 
landowner that we approached to get something built.  We need to be in a very close proximity 
because of the shear cost of it.  The cost goes up so fast when we get away from those 115 Lines 
and we want to be close to Lismore so we can produce redundancy, and also so we can produce 
better power and better quality.  I don’t feel it is disrespectful.  We will have extra parking there that 
the cemetery can utilize as long as they don’t block our gates.  It will be rocked.    
 
Mr. Zylstra:  So our current Ordinance doesn’t have a setback from cemeteries? 
 
Mrs. Henderschiedt: No. 
 
Mr. Zylstra:  So your issue was this is the only site that you could get property owner’s that were 
willing to sell you land and you have to be along Highway 91, correct? 
 
Mr. Tromblay:  Correct. 
 
Mr. Zylstra:  Mrs. Loonan’s point is the Watry’s have other land that would work?  
 
Mr. Postma:  The reason we need this site is because of height of the elevation.  If we start moving 
east, it increases the transmission costs but we are also getting lower and lower and there is also a 
creek there.  If we get in that area, then we will run into DNR issues.     
 
There were no further public comments. 
 
There being no further discussion, the Board reviewed their Findings of Fact.  Upon completion, Mr. 
Feikema made a motion to approve CUP #24-2018 with the following conditions: 
 

1.  The project must be constructed according to plans provided. 
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2.  The weeds must be controlled at the site. 

Mr. Ozmun seconded.  Eight members were in favor and one was opposed.  Motion carried on a split 
vote.   
 
Mr. Feikema:  As far as the road agreement, that would be between Nobles Cooperative Electric and 
the township.  Bill, you have the road agreement, if you want him to sign it, is that correct?  
 
Mr. Slate:  Yes.   
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Nobles County Planning Commission does hereby recommend 
approval of the request of Nobles Cooperative Electric, Worthington, MN applicant, and Daniel Watry, 
Adrian, MN landowner, a conditional use permit for an electrical substation with the following 
conditions: 
 

1. The project must be constructed according to plans provided. 

2. The weeds must be controlled at the site. 

This parcel of land is located on a tract 417.42’ x 417.42’ in the NW Corner of the NW ¼, Section 7, 
Township 103, Range 42, (Larkin Township). 
 
Mrs. Henderschiedt:  This request will be presented to the County Board on October 2, 2018 for final 
approval.   
 
CONTINUATION OF MIKE FOGELMAN, FULDA, MN – CUP #31-2017 

 

Mrs. Henderschiedt read the continuation of Mike Fogelman, DBA Mike’s Mini Excavating, Fulda, MN 
for a home extended business to consist of stockpiling rock, dirt, clay, asphalt and concrete, asphalt 
and concrete crushing on site, operation of an ag drainage business, resale of ag drainage material, 
operation of a subsurface sewage treatment system installation business, and also applying 
household septage to MPCA permitted land.  Public hearing is required under Section 603.4 Home 
Extended Businesses.  This parcel of land is located on a tract 1,052’ x 1,400’ in the SE ¼ of SW ¼, 
Section 15, Township 104, Range 40, Seward Township.  
 

Mrs. Henderschiedt:  This request was originally heard by the Planning & Zoning Committee on 
December 20, 2017.  The Fogelman proposal was originally recommended for approval and 
forwarded to the Board of Commissioners with the following recommended conditions made by the 
Planning and Zoning Committee after the December 20, 2017 meeting:  
 

1)  Township road agreement clarifying who will repair the damage, if any, caused by increased 

equipment hauling and dust control specifications. 

2.) Applicant must provide Environmental Services with MPCA permits for disposal of household 

septage on site. 

 

When the request was presented to the County Commissioners on 01-02-18, there was concern 
about the potential for petroleum based runoff getting into the wetland on the east side of the 
Fogelman property.  The County Commissioners did not feel like the concerns about potential for 
petroleum based runoff were fully addressed and remanded this issue back to the Planning & Zoning 
Committee to acquire additional information from Staff, the DNR, and the MPCA and specifically 
asked for answers to the following questions: 
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1.)  What is the number of acres in the northwest corner of the property that staff 

recommended be designated area for crushed concrete and asphalt stockpiling:  Staff 

believes the area is approximately 3.7 acres 

 

2.) What, if any, is the potential for petroleum based contaminated runoff from a crushed 

asphalt stockpile?  Information received from the DNR and MPCA appear to suggest there 

is minimal risk 

 

3.) Is there any historical documentation to support the potential for petroleum based runoff 

from an asphalt stockpile?  Information received from the DNR and MPCA appear to 

suggest there is not.  

 

4.) If there is potential for contaminated runoff, what would be the DNR/MPCA’s 

recommendation for a buffer area around the stockpiled material? 

DNR recommends a minimum of 50 foot setback if established vegetation between stockpile 

and wetland but would prefer more than 50 foot if there is gravel/other material between 

stockpile and wetland.   

 
On January 24, 2018, the Planning & Zoning Committee heard the request for the second time and at 
that meeting it was discovered that Mr. Fogelman did not have residency at the proposed site.  
Therefore, the request could not be heard, as he did not qualify for the permit as required by the 
Nobles County Land Use Ordinance.  The request was continued until such time a Mr. Fogelman 
occupies the property. 
 
Mrs. Henderschiedt advised that on September 4, 2018, she received a letter from Paul Malone with 
Malone and Mailander stating that he had talked to Mr. Fogelman.  The house is completely finished 
inside and they expect to be fully moved in by September 26, 2018.  Mr. Fogelman asked that a 
public hearing for the home occupation be schedule for the 26th of September.  (A copy of the letter is 
on file at the Environmental Services office.) 
 
Mrs. Henderschiedt advised the board of staff recommendations which include the original two 
conditions, plus an additional four conditions which are as follows: 
 

1.) Township road agreement clarifying who will repair the damage, if any, caused by increased 

equipment hauling and dust control specifications. 

2.) Applicant must provide Environmental Services with MPCA permits for disposal of household 

septage on site. 

3.) Applicant must have the wetland delineated, mapped and marked at his expense. 

4.) A copy of the delineated wetland area map must be provided to Nobles County Environmental 

Services. 

5.) Applicant must establish and maintain a 50’ vegetative buffer around the wetland, if not already 

existing. 

6.) Applicant must maintain a minimum of 50’ setback from wetland to the material stockpiles as 

recommended by the DNR.  
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Mrs. Henderschiedt to the Board Members:  These are strictly recommended conditions.  You can 
add to them, change them, or disallow them as you choose. 
 
Mrs. Henderschiedt:  Mr. Fogelman:  You have obtained occupancy, is that correct? 
 
Mr. Fogelman:  Yes. 
 
Mrs. Henderschiedt:  Since Mr. Fogelman has established occupancy; the only question now is the 
setback to the wetland. 
 
Mr. Penning:  You heard what Kathy read on everything.   The setbacks and conditons that she 
recommended, are you good with that? 
 
Mr. Fogelman:  No, I am not sir.  First of all they refer to it is a wetland.  It is a farmable wetland.  That 
is one clarification I would like to make.  Secondly, she admitted there is no founded evidence of 
asphalt or concrete hurting the wetland, and if you would like to see these pictures I found on the 
internet, it shows the DNR puts walking paths and bike paths right thru their wetland with asphalt.  
This is right off the DNR’s website. 
 
Mr. Thier:  Where do they say the wetland starts?  Is it the whole property? 
 
Mr. Fogelman:  There is a small farmable wetland.  What happened is the tile was capped for many 
years backing the water up making it grow into large cattails.   
 
Mr. Penning:  Did you appeal that, or not? 
 
Mr. Fogelman:  I have not.   
 
Mr. Thier:  Where is lowest point in this picture? 
 
Mr. Fogelman:  They claim it would be right on that line.  There is a line on the photo that kind of 
curves around, but there would be actual tile in there that we fixed.  Up until this year, that tile hadn’t 
worked for years and years because it had been capped in the fence line and they built a berm on the 
DNR side to help keep the water backed up.  I haven’t been able to get the berm removed yet, but I 
have the tile working.  They were supposed to give me an 8” outlet and they gave me a 6” outlet.  
What we’ve got, I have working now.  Even after these big rains that we have had, it drains and in 3 
or 4 days, the water is gone. 
 
Mr. Thier:  Are you looking for the okay to stockpile at any point? 
 
Mr. Fogelman:  The thing is, you can’t drive a dump truck or a pay loader down into a low spot 
anyway.  What I don’t want to get into is down the road somebody comes out and says that pile is 50’ 
too far.  If we want to farm that, and you want me to have a grass buffer….I am not trying to be 
difficult – I just don’t believe in over restriction and over regulating.  
 
Mr. Penning:  Where is the proposed stockpile area? 
 
Mr. Fogelman:  Right now, I have some small rock piles south of the trees on the west side of my 
driveway.  That area would be the handiest at this point – until I can afford to build roads to the grove 
and get back to that back portion which is going to mean removing trees and building roads and 
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putting down gravel to even get back there.  It is cost prohibitive at this point, but if in the future if 
there is a lot of demand and it becomes feasible, that is something I could do down the road.   
 
Mr. Schmitz:  The current stockpile location you have drains to the south, correct? 
 
Mr. Fogelman:  Yes.  I had the farmable land all dug and the neighbor was going to come and plant 
soybeans in it, but we got that 10” rain and then it was too late to try to plant it.  I grew it in grass 
again.  I am not sure if I am going to plant alfalfa next year or what I will do. 
 
Mr. Their:  As far as stockpiling, how much area do you feel you need in the future? 
 
Mr. Fogelman:  I hope it will go over fairly well, there isn’t that many locations up in that area where 
you can take concrete or asphalt.  I don’t know if we will ever use that big of space that I need to 
utilize the area in the north.  I hope it takes off and works out.  It is more of a service to your 
customer.  If you take out someone’s side walk or asphalt driveway, where do you go with it?  I’ve got 
some machinery behind the trees.  I don’t want to be an eyesore.  I think the DNR jumped the gun on 
this and it turned into kind of a witch hunt.  The DNR paves bike paths right thru their wetland, and yet 
you don’t want me to recycle concrete in this grass or even close to it.   
 
Mr. Penning:  You stated that this is not a wetland, but a farmable wetland.  That is a huge difference 
in the FSA office.  A wetland in my experience is non-tillable and strictly a wildlife area.  Your maps 
show this as a farmable wetland? 
 
Mr. Fogelman:  That is what they told me when I went in there.  The previous property owner had 
received some money years back thru the Heron Lake Watershed, to restore the wetland and I think 
that is why they plugged the tile and built the berm.  They told me when I went in there that it is a 
farmable wetland. I have fixed the tile, and now it is draining.  It is just going to take a few years.  This 
is not a good year to judge, but even this year it drains in 3 or 4 days so I know we will bring this back 
to useful land. 
 
Mr. Penning:  You said they told you that it was a farmable wetland.  We don’t have a map on to 
confirm that so basically we have to look at it as being here say.  You should have an FSA map that 
should show an FW on it clarifying it as farmable wetland, and if it has tile in it, it should be a PC 
which is a prior conversion.  Again, you don’t know why the former owner blocked the tile.  I guess 
you would have to check to see that you didn’t cross any lines there. 
 
Mr. Fogelman:  I already have.  I have already been in there.  Now they say if I get a crop off of it 6 
out of 8 years or whatever it is…8 out of 10 years, I can pattern tile it. 
 
Mr. Penning:  We have a lot more clarity tonight than we had at the other sessions.  Last time that 
came up and you weren’t living in the house, and that shot by all of us.  We are sorry about that.  I am 
sorry about that.  I think we have apologized to you before. We all missed it. 
 
Mr. Fogelman:  And I missed it because I thought if it was our intention to live there, that was enough.    
 
Mr. Penning:  With me being a farmer and having dealt with a lot of wetland stuff, and tiling projects, 
you get into these areas where no one ever checks.   This area gets marked as a wetland and no one 
ever checks into it.  If there is field tile in there it is a PC – prior conversion.  In your situation, you 
have repaired the field tile and now in my estimation and knowledge of this, you have a farmable 
wetland.  Based on it being a farmable wetland, I believe we have to ignore conditions 3-6, but when 
you go before the County Commissioners, that is going to have to be clearly stated.  I would think that 
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you should provide Kathy with a FSA or NRCS map with the proper designation on it.  That being 
either a PC – Prior Conversion or FW – Farmable wetland.  I would think that it would be a PC now 
that you have working tile in there, but I am not certain how that is addressed today. I haven’t done 
that in a number of years.  That is your clout right there to take care of a lot of these things.  That 
would take care of the 50’ buffer strip and all.  You’re not stacking it by the DNR, your stacking it on 
your property.  That is how I see it. I believe everything that the County Commissioners brought up 
has been addressed here, as long as Mike provides the documentation.  If you got permission to fix 
the tile, that tells me it is no longer a wetland, but we need a copy of the document in our file.     
 
Mr. Fogelman: All right, I will go the FSA office and get a copy of the map.   
 
There being no further discussion, the Board reviewed their Findings of Fact.  Upon completion, Mr. 
Zylstra made a motion to approve CUP #31-2017 with the following conditions: 
 

1.) Township road agreement clarifying who will repair the damage, if any, caused by increased 

equipment hauling and dust control specifications. 

2.) Applicant must provide Environmental Services with MPCA permits for disposal of household 

septage on site. 

3.) Applicant must provide Environmental Services with a copy of the FSA map indicating this is a 

farmable wetland. 

 

Mr. Fogelman:  Those maps are protected.  It is not public.  I am okay with you having it in your file as 

long as it is not open for anyone in the public to look at.   

 

Mr. Penning:  In your case, it is very important that we have that information in your file as it takes 

care of recommended conditions 3 thru 6.   

 

Mr. Fogelman:  Okay. 

 

Mr. Ozmun seconded the motion.  All were in favor.  Motion carried. 

  

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Nobles County Planning Commission does hereby recommend 
approval of the request of Mike Fogelman, DBA Mike’s Mini Excavating, Fulda, MN for a home 
extended business to consist of stockpiling rock, dirt, clay, asphalt and concrete, asphalt and 
concrete crushing on site, operation of an ag drainage business, resale of ag drainage material, 
operation of a subsurface sewage treatment system installation business, and also applying 
household septage to MPCA permitted land with the following conditions: 
 

1.)  Township road agreement clarifying who will repair the damage, if any, caused by increased 

equipment hauling and dust control specifications. 

2.) Applicant must provide Environmental Services with MPCA permits for disposal of household 

septage on site. 

3.) Applicant must provide Environmental Services with a copy of the FSA map indicating this is a 

farmable wetland. 

 
This parcel of land is located on a tract 1,052’ x 1,400’ in the SE ¼ of SW ¼, Section 15, Township 
104, Range 40, Seward Township.  
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Mrs. Henderschiedt:  This request will be presented to the County Board on October 2, 2018 for final 
approval.   
 
There being no further business, Mr. Feikema made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Mr. Thier 
seconded it.  All were in favor.  The meeting was adjourned. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Licia Keninger 
Environmental Assistant 
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